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1. Introduction.

1. Complainant, B & R Plastics, Inc. (“B&R?”), respectfully requests that the United
States International Trade Commisssion commence an investigaiton pursuant to Section 337 of
the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337, (“Section 337”), to remedy the unlawful
importation into the United States, the sale for importation into the United States, and/or the sale
within the United States after importation by the owner, importer, or consignees of certain
foldable stools, including foldable stools under various trade names such as the “Easy Fold Step
Stool” (the “Accused Products™).

2. B&R has established a domestic industry (“B&R’s Domestic Industry”) and has
invested substantial capital, labor and resources in the development, manufacturing, and
distribution of injection molded plastic household items and, in particular, of foldable stools.
One of B&R’s products, developed as a result of its domestic investment, is the “EZ Foldz Step
Stool” (“the B&R Stool”). The B&R Stool is a household item carried by many retailers. The
B&R Stool, along with its associated proprietary design, is one of B&R’s most valuable assets.

3. B&R is the exclusive licensee of the design claimed in U.S. Patent No. D460,566,
which issued on July 16, 2002 and is entitled “Foldable Stool” (the “’566 Patent”). B&R was
granted the exclusive right to enforce the 566 Patent. The design claimed in the *566 Patent is
embodied in the B&R Stool.

4. The proposed Respondents include manufacturers and distributors of the Accused
Products, Ningbo ZhongTian Co, LTD, Ningbo Ningfeng Import and Export Co Ltd., and
Kikkerland Design, and also retailers of the Accused Products, including proposed Respondents,
abc Distributing, Always Something Brilliant, Amazon.com, Inc., Bed Bath & Beyond,

Buy.com, Crate & Barrel, Home Depot, The Afternoon, The Container Store, and QVC.



5. The proposed Respondents infringe the claim of the 566 Patent. The Accused
Products, including Kikkerland Design’s “Easy Fold Step Stool” have been imported and/or sold
in the United States the after importation by the proposed Respondents in violation of Section
337(a)(1)(B) of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended.

6. Accordingly, the proposed Respondents have engaged in unfair acts in violation
of Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, through the importation, sale for
importation into the United States, and sale after importation in the United States of the Accused
Products.

7. Therefore, Complainant B&R request that, after the investigation, the
Commission issue a (an) exclusion order (or orders), as provided by Section 337(d) of the Tariff
Act of 1930, as amended, excluding at least the Accused Products from entry into the United
States.

8. B&R further seeks a cease and desist order (or orders) pursuant to Section 337(f)
of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, compelling the proposed Respondents to stop the
promotion, marketing, advertising, demonstrating or warehousing of inventory of the Accused

Products for distribution, sale and/or use within the United States.

I1. Complainant.

9. B&R is a company organized under the laws of the State of Colorado and has its
principal offices in the city of Denver, Colorado, where it employs approximately 80 persons in
the United States. B&R is a developer, manufacturer, and distributor of injection molded plastic
household items. In connection with its development and manufacturing of injection molded
household items, B&R entered into an exclusive agreement for the rights to a “Foldable Stool”

design. The Foldable Stool design was awarded protection within the United States under the



’566 Patent. Using its rights to the *566 Patent, B&R develops, manufactures, and distributes the

B&R Stool.

1. Proposed Respondents.

10. Upon information and belief, Ningbo ZhongTian Co, LTD is a corporation
organized under the laws of the People’s Republic of China, with a principal place of business at
23F/B Hai Hong Building No. 12, Huai Shu Xiang, Ningbo, China. Upon information and
belief, Ningbo ZhongTian manufactures a variety of competing foldable stools, including the
Accused Products, sells the Accused Products for importation into the United States, and ships
the Accused Products to the United States. (Exhibit 1). For example, The following is a

photograph from one of the foldable stools manufactured by Ningbo ZhongTian:
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Notably, as shown below, even the likeness of this stool’s label is copied from the label of the
B&R Stool, including images of family members of B&R’s Vice President and General

Manager, Darrell A. Kulzer:




Upon information and belief, Ningbo ZhongTian manufactures foldable stools for U.S.
distributors, including manufacturing the Accused Products for proposed Respondent Kikkerland
Design.

11.  Upon information and belief, Ningbo Ningfeng Import and Export Co Ltd. is a
corporation organized under the laws of the People’s Republic of China, with a principal place of
business at 23/F Hai Hong Building No. 12 Huaishu Xiang, Ningbo, Zhejiang, China.! Upon
information and belief, including information that the entities share the same location, Ningbo
Ningfeng Import and Export sells the Accused Products manufactured by Ningbo ZhongTian for
importation into the United States, and imports the Accused Products into the United States for
sale (collectively Ningbo ZhongTian and Ningbo Ningfeng Import and Export will be referred to
as the “Ningbo Respondents™). (Exhibit 2). For example, Ningbo ZhongTian imports the
Accused Products into the United States for proposed Respondent Kikkerland Design. Id.

12.  Kikkerland Design Inc., is a company organized under the laws of the state of
New York, with a principal place of business at 1361 Amsterdam Ave 4B, New York, NY
10027. (Exhibit 3). Kikkerland Design imports and distributes stools of various sizes and colors
under the trade name “Easy Fold Step Stool,” all of which are Accused Products. (Exhibit 4).
Upon information and belief, Kikkerland Design purchases the Accused Products from the
Ningbo Respondents and imports and sells the Accused Products in the United States, including

selling the Accused Products on its website www.kikkerland.com. (Exhibits 2 and 4).

Kikkerland Design also sells the Accused Products to various retailers, such as proposed
Respondents, abc Distributing, Always Something Brilliant, Amazon.com, Inc., Bed Bath &

Beyond, Buy.com, Crate & Barrel, Home Depot, The Afternoon, The Container Store, and QVC,

! The address for Respondent Ningbo ZhongTian Co. LTD was obtained through its website. (Exhibit 1). The
address for Respondent Ningbo Ningfeng Import and Export was obtained through importation documents. (Exhibit
2). It is believed that the addresses are for the same location.



who in turn sell the Accused Products in the US. (Exhibits 4, 6,7,9, 11, 13, 15, 17, 19, 21, 23
and 25).

13.  abc Distributing (also doing business as LTD Commodities) is a distribution and
retailing company organized under the laws of the state of Illinois, with offices at 2800 Lakeside
Drive, Bannockburn, IL 60015. (Exhibit 5). abc Distributing/LTD Commodities markets and
distributes Kikkerland Design’s “Easy Fold Step Stool,” which is an Accused Product, on its
website www.abcdistributing.com. (Exhibits 6 and 7). Upon information and belief, abc
Distributing/L TD Commodities imports the Accused Product for sale in the United States and
sells the Accused Product in the United States.

14. Always Something Brilliant is an entity with offices at 6720 East 47th Avenue
Drive, Denver, CO 80216. (Exhibit 8). Always Something Brilliants markets and distributes
Kikkerland Design’s “Easy Fold Step Stool,” which is an Accused Product, on its website
www.alwaysbrilliant.com. (Exhibit 9). Upon information and belief, Always Something
Brilliant imports the Accused Product for sale in the United States and sells the Accused Product
in the United States.

15. Amazon.com, Inc. is a corporation organized under the laws of the state of
Delaware and has its headquarters at 1200 12th Ave. South, Ste. 1200, Seattle, WA, 98144-2734.
(Exhibit 10). Amazon.com markets and distributes Kikkerland Design’s “Easy Fold Step Stool,”
which is an Accused Product, on its website www.amazon.com. (Exhibit 11). Amazon.com
sells the Accused Product in the United States.

16.  Bed Bath & Beyond Inc. is a corporation organized under the laws of the state of
New York and has its headquarters at 650 Liberty Avenue, Union, NJ, 07083. (Exhibit 12). Bed

Bath & Beyond markets and distributes Kikkerland Design’s “Easy Fold Step Stool,” which is an



Accused Product. (Exhibit 13). Bed Bath & Beyond sells the Accused Product in the United
States.

17.  Buy.com Inc. is a corporation organized under the laws of the state of Delaware
and has its headquarters at 85 Enterprise, Aliso Viejo, CA, 92656. (Exhibit 14). Buy.com
markets and distributes Kikkerland Design’s “Easy Fold Step Stool,” which is an Accused
Product, on its website www.buy.com. (Exhibit 15). Buy.com sells the Accused Product in the
United States.

18.  Crate & Barrel Inc. is a corporation organized under the laws of the state of
[linois and has its headquarters at 1250 Techny Road, Northbrook, IL, 60062. (Exhibit 16).
Crate & Barrel markets and distributes Kikkerland Design’s “Easy Fold Step Stool,” which is an
Accused Product, on its website www.crateandbarrel.com. (Exhibit 17). Upon information and
belief, Crate & Barrel imports Accused Products into the United States and sells Accused
Products in the United States.

19.  Home Depot Inc. is corporation organized under the laws of the state of Delaware
and has its headquarters at 2455 Paces Ferry Road, N.W., Atlanta, GA 30339. (Exhibit 18).
Home Depot markets and distributes Kikkerland Design’s “Easy Fold Step Stool,” which is an
Accused Product, on its website www.homedepot.com. (Exhibit 19). Home Depot sells the
Accused Products in the United States.

20.  The Afternoon is an entity with a location at Westroads Mall, 10000 California
Street, Ste 3525, Omaha, NE, 68114. (Exhibit 20). The Afternoon markets and distributes
Kikkerland Design’s “Easy Fold Step Stool,” which is an Accused Product, on its website
www.theafternoon.com. (Exhibit 21). Upon information and belief The Afternoon imports the

Accused Products into the United States and sells the Accused Products in the United States.



21.  The Container Store, Inc. is corporation organized under the laws of the state of
Texas and has its headquarters at 500 Freeport Parkway, Coppell, TX 75019. (Exhibit 22). The
Container Store markets and distributes Kikkerland Design’s “Easy Fold Step Stool,” which is an
Accused Product, on its website www.containerstore.com. (Exhibit 23). The Container Store
sells the Accused Products in the United States.

22.  QVC, Inc. is a company organized under the laws of the state of Delaware with its
headquarters at 1200 Wilson Drive, West Chester, PA, 19380. (Exhibit 24). QVC markets and
distributes Kikkerland Design’s “Easy Fold Step Stool,” which is an Accused Product. (Exhibit
25). QVC imports and sells the Accused Products in the United States.

1v. The Technology-at-Issue and Patent-in-Suit.

a. General Description of Technology-at-Issue.

23.  The technology-at-issue relates to a unique and proprietary design for foldable

stools.
24.  B&R manufactures and sells a product using its proprietary foldable stool design

under the trade name “EZ Foldz Folding Step Stool.” (Exhibit 26 and also depicted below).

25.  Aspects of a foldable stool design have been patented in the *566 Patent, by

inventors Reed. E. Henschel and Brad Eveleth.



26.  B&R began to develop and manufacture its foldable stool in or around 2001, and,
to date, has invested substantially to manufacture and distribute to the B&R Stools.

b. B&R’s U.S. Patent No. D460,566.

27.  OnJuly 16, 2002, the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office duly, properly and
legally issued U.S. Patent No. D460,566, entitled “Foldable Stool.” Copies of the certified copy
of the *566 Patent is submitted with this Complaint as Exhibit 27, and the certified copy is
submitted with the original of this Complaint.

28.  The 566 Patent is the product of U.S. Patent Application No. 29/144,406, filed
July 2, 2001. A certified copy of the prosecution history of the 566 Patent (and copies thereof)
is submitted as Appendix 1 to this Complaint. The references cited during the prosecution of the
’566 Patent are available in Appendix 2.

29.  Generally speaking, the *566 Patent is directed to a design for a foldable stool as

depicted below:

30. Brad Eveleth, one of the Inventor of the *566 Patent, assigned all rights, title, and
interest in the *566 Patent to Foldz LLC. A certified copy of the Assignment document for the
’566 Patent is submitted with the original Complaint and copies are provided as Exhibit 28 to the

Complaint.



31. In 2006, Foldz LLC granted exclusive rights to the 566 Patent to B&R. A copy
of the exclusive license is attached hereto as Exhibit 29.

32.  In 2006, inventor Reed. E. Henschel granted exclusive rights to the *566 Patent to
B&R. A copy of the exclusive license is attached hereto as Exhibit 30.

33.  There *566 Patent has no foreign counterparts. No other foreign applications or
patents corresponding to the *566 Patent have been filed, abandoned, or rejected.

34.  The parties sublicensing the *566 Patent from B&R are set forth in Exhibit 31.

V. Accused Products of Proposed Respondents.

35. The proposed Respondents were and are competitors of B&R with regard to
foldable stools, and have been marketing, distributing, and selling foldable stools to unfairly
compete with the B&R Stool, which is described in Section IV.

36. As seen in the data provided by the proposed Respondents on their websites,
many proposed Respondents have sold and are currently selling foldable stools, including
Kikkerland Design’s Accused Product (“Easy Fold Step Stool”), under various trade names.
(Exhibits 4, 6, 7,9, 11, 13, 15, 17, 19, 21, 23 and 25).

37. In general, the proposed Respondent’s products are of the design depicted below:




38.  Variations in the Accused Products may include differences in the colors and
sizes. (Exhibits 4,6,7,9,11,13,15,17,19, 21, 23 and 25). In general, the configuration of the
Accused Products are comparable to each other. Id.

39.  Upon information and belief, the Accused Products are manufactured in China.
(Exhibit 32).

40.  Upon information and belief, the Accused Products are manufactured by at least
proposed Respondent Ningbo ZhongTian in China. (Exhibits 1 and 32). The Ningbo
Respondents export the Accused Product to the United States, including exporting the Accused
Products to proposed Respondent Kikkerland Design. (Exhibit 33).

41.  One of the Accused Products manufactured and exported by Ningbo ZhongTian is

item number ZT-ZDD-008A, and is depicted below as shown on its website:

42.  Upon information and belief, the Accused Products are manufactured and shipped
to the United States by the Ningbo Respondents for Kikkerland Design (Exhibit 33), and are
subsequently sold in the United States by various retailers, including those identified as proposed
Respondents. (Exhibits 4, 6,7,9, 11, 13, 15, 17, 19, 21, 23 and 25).

43. Stools were purchased from the distributing and retailing proposed Respondents.
(Exhibit 34, Declaration of Debbie Reed, Exhibit 35, Declaration of Darrell Kulzer, and Exhibit
36 Declaration of Stephen Katsaros). These stools purchased and received from the proposed

Respondents were photographed for the claim charts provided as Exhibits 39-49. The claim

10



charts also include photographs of each stool’s labels, which indicate that each of the retailing

proposed Respondents sell Kikkerland Design’s “Easy Fold Step Stool” product number “zz-09.”

VI.  The Domestic Industry.
44. A Domestic Industry, under Subparts (A), (B) and (C) of Section 337(a)(3), exists

by virtue of B&R’S activities within the United States, including B&R’s manufacture, research
and development, repair and service of its injection molded household items including foldable
stools.

45.  B&R’s domestic activities include its significant investment in plant and
equipment and significant investment in labor and capital. B&R’ domestic facility in Denver,
Colorado includes salaried design and manufacturing employees, salaried administrative
employees, million dollar manufacturing equipment for a manufacturing production line and
other assets allowing for the research, development, production and sales of injection molded
household items in Denver, Colorado. A substantial portion of the B&R Domestic Industry is
specifically dedicated to the B&R Stool. B&R has justified its substantial domestic investment
through the anticipated commercial profits of the exploitation and/or sale of the B&R Stool.
(Exhibit 37, Declaration of Darrell A. Kulzer).

46.  B&R domestically practices the claim of the *566 Patent when it manufactures
and distributes the B&R stool, sold under the trade name the “EZ Foldz Step Stool” from its
Denver, Colorado facility. (Exhibit 38, Claim Chart).

VII. Unfair Acts Of The Proposed Respondents.

a. Patent Infringement.

47.  The Ningbo Respondents manufacture and sell for importation Accused Products,
including Kikkerland Design’s “Easy Fold Step Stool” product no. “zz-09,” which infringes the

566 Patent. (Exhibits 2 and 4). Kikkerland Design purchases and imports Accused Products

11



from the Ningbo Respondents and then distributes the infringing Accused Products to retailers.
(Exhibit 33). Kikkerland Design also sells the Accused Product on its website

www.kikkerland.com. (Exhibit 4). A Claim Chart applying figures of the 566 Patent to an

Accused Product manufactured by the Ningbo Respondents and sold by Kikkerland Design is
submitted with this Complaint as Exhibit 39.

48.  Upon information and belief, proposed Respondent abc Distributing sells in the
United States an Accused Product that infringes the 566 Patent. (Exhibits 6 and 7). abc
Distributing retails Kikkerland Design’s Accused Product on its website
www.abcdistributing.com. (Exhibit 40). A Claim Chart applying figures of the *566 Patent to a
Kikkerland Design Accused Product sold by abc Distributing is submitted with this Complaint as
Exhibit 40.

49.  Upon information and belief, proposed Respondent Always Something Brilliant
sells in the United States an Accused Product that infringes the *566 Patent. (Exhibit 9).
Always Something Brilliant retails Kikkerland Design’s Accused Product on its website
www.alwaysbrilliant.com. (Exhibit 41). A Claim Chart applying figures of the 566 Patent to
Kikkerland Design’s Accused Product sold by Always Something Brilliant is submitted with this
Complaint as Exhibit 41.

50.  Upon information and belief, proposed Respondent Amazon.com sells in the
United States an Accused Product that infringes the *566 Patent. (Exhibit 11). Amazon.com
retails Kikkerland Design’s Accused Product on its website www.amazon.com. (Exhibit 42). A
Claim Chart applying figures of the *566 Patent to a Kikkerland Design Accused Product sold by

Amazon.com is submitted with this Complaint as Exhibit 42.
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51.  Upon information and belief, proposed Respondent Bed Bath & Beyond sells in
the United States an Accused Product that infringes the 566 Patent. (Exhibit 13). Bed Bath &
Beyond retails Kikkerland Design’s Accused Product in its stores. (Exhibit 43). A Claim Chart
applying figures of the 566 Patent to a Kikkerland Design Accused Product sold by Bed Bath &
Beyond is submitted with this Complaint as Exhibit 43.

52.  Upon information and belief, proposed Respondent Buy.com sells in the United
States an Accused Product that infringes the *566 Patent. (Exhibit 15). Buy.com retails
Kikkerland Design’s Accused Product on its website www.buy.com. (Exhibit 44). A Claim
Chart applying figures of the *566 Patent to Kikkerland Design’s Accused Product sold by
Buy.com is submitted with this Complaint as Exhibit 44.

53.  Upon information and belief, proposed Respondent Crate & Barrel sells in the
United States an Accused Product that infringes the *566 Patent. (Exhibit 17). Crate & Barrel
retails Kikkerland Design’s Accused Product on its website www.crateandbarrel.com. (Exhibit
45). A Claim Chart applying figures of the *566 Patent to a Kikkerland Design Accused Product
sold by Crate & Barrel is submitted with this Complaint as Exhibit 45.

54.  Upon information and belief, proposed Respondent Home Depot sells in the
United States an Accused Product that infringes the *566 Patent. (Exhibit 19). Home Depot
retails Kikkerland Design’s Accused Product on its website www.homedepot.com. (Exhibit 46).
A Claim Chart applying figures of the 566 Patent to a Kikkerland Design Accused Product sold
by Home Depot is submitted with this Complaint as Exhibit 46.

55.  Upon information and belief, proposed Respondent The Afternoon sells in the
United States an Accused Product that infringes the *566 Patent. (Exhibit 21). The Afternoon

retails Kikkerland Design’s Accused Product on its website theafternoon.com. (Exhibit 47). A

13



Claim Chart applying figures of the *566 Patent to a Kikkerland Design Accused Product sold by
The Afternoon is submitted with this Complaint as Exhibit 47.

56.  Upon information and belief, proposed Respondent The Container Store sells in
the United States an Accused Product that infringes the 566 Patent. (Exhibit 23). The
Container Store retails Kikkerland Design’s Accused Product on its website
www.containerstore.com. (Exhibit 48). A Claim Chart applying figures of the *566 Patent to a
Kikkerland Design Accused Product sold by The Container Store is submitted with this
Complaint as Exhibit 48.

57.  Upon information and belief, proposed Respondent QVC sells in the United
States an Accused Product that infringes the *566 Patent. (Exhibit 25). QVC retails Kikkerland
Design’s Accused Product. (Exhibit 49). A Claim Chart applying figures of the *566 Patent to a
Kikkerland Design Accused Product sold by QVC is submitted with this Complaint as Exhibit
49.

VIII. Specific Instance Of Importation.

58.  In at least seven instances, the Ningbo Respondents have imported the Accused
Products into the United States. (Exhibit 33). As seen in Exhibit 33, the imported Accused
Products are identified by Kikkerland Design’s part number “zz09.” (Exhibits 33 and 4).
Further, as seen in Exhibit 33, shipments of the Kikkerland Design Accused Products are
designated for proposed Respondents Kikkerland Design and QVC.

59.  The Accused Products marketed and sold by the proposed Respondents identify
the country of origin as China. (Exhibits 39-49). As such, on information and belief, the
Accused Products have been sold after importation into the United States by the proposed

Respondents.
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60.  On information and belief, the folding stools are classified in the HTS as “plastics
and articles thereof” in Chapter 39 and/or as “Furniture; bedding, mattresses, mattress supports,
cushions and similar stuffed furnishings; lamps and lighting fittings, not elsewhere specified or
included; illuminated sign illuminated nameplates and the like; prefabricated buildings” in
Chapter 94. Based on current information and facts available, the HTS Classifications for the
Accused products, which infringe the *566 Patent, include subheadings 3924.90.5600 and
9403.70.8010.

IX. Other Proceedings.

61. B&R filed a complaint on March 28, 2006 in the US District Court, District of
Colorado alleging non-respondent, Camco Manufacturing, Inc., infringed the *566 Patent. The
action was assigned No. 06-CV-00572 by the United States Courts for the District of Colorado.
The parties reached an agreement and the proceeding was dismissed under Rule 41(a)(1)(ii) of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

62. B&R filed a complaint on July 20, 2007 in the US District Court, District of
Colorado alleging non-respondent, Chain Drug, Inc. infringed the *566 Patent. The action was
assigned No. 07-CV-01531 by the United States Courts for the District of Colorado. The parties
reached an agreement and the proceeding was dismissed under Rule 41 (a)(l)(ii)’ of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure.

63. B&R filed a complaint on October 10, 2007 in the US District Court, District of
Colorado alleging proposed Respondent, Bed Bath & Beyond? infringed the *566 Patent. The
action was assigned No. 07-CV-02141 by the United States Courts for the District of Colorado.
The parties reached an agreement and the proceeding was dismissed under Rule 41(a)(1)(ii) of

the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

2 With respect to a different product, which is not an Accused Product.
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64.  B&R filed a complaint on May 2, 2008 in the US District Court, District of
Colorado alleging non-respondent, Whitney Design Inc. infringed the 566 Patent. The action
was assigned No. 08-CV-00914 by the United States Courts for the District of Colorado. This
proceeding was dismissed due to jurisdictional issues. Subsequently, a complaint for
Declaratory Judgment regarding the *566 Patent was filed by Whitney Design, Inc. in the Eastern
District of Missouri on August 4, 2008. The case was assigned case number 08-CV-1140. The
parties reached an agreement and the proceeding was dismissed under Rule 41(a)(1)(i) of the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

65. B&R filed a complaint on May 2, 2000 in the US District Court, District of
Colorado alleging non-respondent, JML Direct Ltd., aka JML Group of Companies, aka JML
House, aka JML International, and John Doe as JML Retail Distributor Partner infringed the
’566 Patent. The action was assigned No. 08-CV-00915 by the United States Courts for the
District of Colorado. The parties reached an agreement and the proceeding was dismissed under
Rule 41(a)(1)(i) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

66. B&R filed a complaint on December 5, 2008 (and amended September 9, 2009)
in the US District Court, District of Colorado alleging proposed Respondents, Kikkerland
Design, Bed Bath & Beyond, abc Distributing, Home Depot, Crate & Barrel, The Afternoon,
Amazon.com, QVC, Always Something Brilliant, and non-respondents, Yolk Industries, The
Sportsman’s Guide, Carmel Bay Company and Metro Market Sales infringed the 566 Patent.
The action was assigned No. 08-CV-02646 by the United States Courts for the District of
Colorado. The proceeding is currently pending. Defendant Kikkerland Design has filed an

Answer to the Complaint and Counterclaims, and B&R has answered Kikkerland’s
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Counterclaims. The other defendants were recently added to the proceeding and have yet to file
Answers to the Complaint.

67. B&R filed a complaint on January 23, 2009 in the US District Court, District of
Colorado alleging non-respondent Illinois Industrial Tool, Inc. infringed the *566 Patent. The
action was assigned No. 09-CV-00127 by the United States Courts for the District of Colorado.
The parties reached an agreement and the proceeding was dismissed under Rule 41(a)(1)(i) of the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

68.  B&R filed a complaint on March 30, 2009 (amended June 1, 2009) in the US
District Court, District of Colorado alleging non-respondents Big R, Ron Kay, Bob Curry, and
Watseka Rural King Supply, Inc. infringed the 566 Patent. The action was assigned No. 07-
CV-02141 by the United States Courts for the District of Colorado. The parties reached an
agreement and the proceeding was dismissed under Rule 41(a)(1)(ii) of the Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure.

69. B&R filed a Complaint on April 20, 2009 in the US District Court, District of
Colorado alleging non-respondent Norm Thompson Outfitters, Inc. infringed the 566 Patent.
The action was assigned No. 09-CV-00901 by the United States Courts for the District of
Colorado. The case is currently pending and B&R recently filed an Answer to the Defendant’s
Counterclaims.

70. The *566 Patent has not been the subject of any other court or agency litigation,
foreign or domestic.

X. Requests For Relief.

71. Wherefore, pursuant to ITC Rule 210.12 (a)(10), B&R respectfully requests that

the Commission:
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Institute an immediate investigation pursuant to Section 337 of the Tariff Act of
1930, as amended, into the proposed Respondent’s unfair acts and methods of
competition in the importation into the United States, and the sale for importation
into the United States, of the Accused Products that infringe the 566 Patent;

Set a target date of no more than twelve months due to the simplicity of this
investigation;

Schedule and conduct a hearing pursuant to Section 337(c) for purposes of
receiving evidence and hearing argument concerning whether there has been a
violation of Section 337, and following the hearing, to determine that there has
been a violation of Section 337,

Issue a permanent exclusion order pursuant to Section 337(d), excluding from
entry into the United States products, including the Accused Products, that
infringe the 566 Patent;

Issue an order or orders pursuant to Section 337(f) to cease and desist unfair acts
and methods of competition, including assembly, testing, marketing, distributing,
offering for sale, selling, or otherwise transferring in the United States the
Accused Products that infringe the *566 Patent; and

Grant such other and further relief as the Commission finds appropriate and just
under the law, based upon the facts complained of herein and determined in the

investigation.
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Dated: November 6, 2009

Respectfully submitted,

Counsel for Complainant

B&R PrLASTICS INC.
By: WL\
One Of Their Attorneys

Jack Q. Lever

Shamita Etienne-Cummings
Monisha Deka

White & Case LLP

701 13th Street NW
Washington, DC 20005

Erik G. Fischer

Fischer & Fischer LLP

125 South Howes Street, Suite 900
Fort Collins, CO 80522
(970)-482-4710

William W. Cochran

Cochran Freund & Young LLP
2026 Caribou Drive, Suite 201
Fort Collins, CO 80525
(970)-492-1100
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Verification Of Complaint

I, Shamita Etienne-Cummings, declare, in accordance with 19 C.F.R. § 210.4 and 210.12(a),
under penalty of perjury, that the following statements are true:

I am the counsel for B&R Plastics Inc. (“B&R”), and am duly authorized to sign this
Complaint on behalf of B&R;

I have read the foregoing Complaint and am aware of its contents;

To the best of my knowledge, information, and belief based on reasonable inquiry,
the foregoing Complaint is well-founded in fact, and is warranted by existing law or
by a non-frivolous argument for the extension, modification or reversal of existing
law or the establishment of new law;

The allegations and other factual contentions have evidentiary support or are likely to
have evidentiary support after a reasonable opportunity for further investigation or
discovery; and

The foregoing Complaint is not being filed for an improper purpose, such as to harass
or to cause unnecessary delay or needless increase in the cost of litigation.

Executed on this 6th Day of November, 2009.

Shamita Etienne-Cummings

Counsel for B&R
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